
 

Democratic Service 
Swyddfa’r Cyngor 

CAERNARFON 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 

 

 

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 
 

  
 

Meeting 
 

PENSION BOARD 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
2.00 pm, TUESDAY, 5TH DECEMBER, 2017 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Ystafell Gwyrfai, Council Offices,  

 
Caernarfon, Gwynedd. LL55 1SH 

 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Lowri Haf Evans 

01286 679878 

lowrihafevans@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

(DISTRIBUTED 27/11/17) 

Complete Agenda

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/


 

PENSION BOARD 
 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

EMPLOYER REPRESENTATIVES 
 
 
 

Anthony William Deakin Cartrefi Conwy 
 

Councillor Aled Ll. Evans 
 

Huw Trainor 

Cyngor Gwynedd Council 
 

North Wales Police 
 
 

 

MEMBER REPRESENTATIVES 
 
 

Hywel Eifion Jones (retired – formerly Anglesey Council) 
 

Osian Richards 
 

Sharon Warnes 

Members Representative 
 

(retired - formerly Gwynedd Council) 

  



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence 

 
 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declaration of personal interest 

 
 

3.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 

 To note any items which are urgent business in the opinion of the Chairman 
so that they may be considered 

 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

4 - 7 

 The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the meeting of this 
committee  held on 23.10.17 be signed as a true record.  

 

 

5.   MINUTES OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 

8 - 10 

 The minutes of the Pensions Committee held on 9 11 2017 were accepted 
for information. 

 

 

6.   WALES PENSIONS PARTNERSHIP 
 

 

 To receive verbal update from the Head of Finance on recent progress 

 
 

7.   THE PENSION REGULATOR: PUBLIC SERVICE GOVERNANCE 
SURVEY 2017 
 

11 - 27 

 To receive feedback from the Board in order to complete the survey 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



PENSION BOARD 23.10.17 

 1 

 

 

 

PENSION BOARD, 23.10.17  

 

 

Present: Anthony Deakin (Cartrefi Conwy), Cllr Aled Evans (Gwynedd Council), H.  Eifion 
Jones (Scheme Members' Representative), Osian Richards (Scheme Members' 
Representative), Huw Trainor (North Wales Police) and Sharon Warnes (Scheme 
Members' Representative)  
 

Others invited: Councillor Stephen Churchman (Chair of the Pensions Committee).   
 

Officers:  Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Caroline Roberts (Investment 
Manager), Nicholas Hopkins (Pensions Manager), Meirion Jones (Senior Communication 
Officer - Pensions) and Lowri Haf Evans (Member Support Officer). 

 

1. APOLOGIES 

 
None to note  

 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
No declarations of personal interest were received from any members present.  

 

3.   URGENT ITEMS 

 
None to note 

 

4. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
The Chair signed the minutes of the meeting of this committee, held on 24 July 
2017, as a true record, subject to correcting, in the English version, that the Chair of 
the  Pensions Committee had been elected as Chair of the Wales Pension 
Partnership Joint-committee and not the Chair of the Pensions Board.  

 

 Matters arising 

 
In response to the request for an update regarding receiving more information 
about moral investments, the Head of Finance reported that he had discussed the 
request with Hymans and it would be possible to hold a half-day of training jointly 
with the Members of the Pensions Committee.   The next step would be to agree on 
headings to include in the training programme and find a mutually convenient date.  

 

 

      5.   PENSIONS COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the Pensions Committee held on 29 September 2017 were 
accepted for information.  

 

6.   MARKETS IN FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DIRECTIVE II (MiFID II) 

 
A report had been submitted to the Pensions Committee on 29.9.17 requesting the 
Committee to elect professional client status.  It was explained that local authorities 
under the current Act in the United Kingdom were automatically categorised as  'per 
se professional' clients in relation to businesses outside the scope of MiFID.  They 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



PENSION BOARD 23.10.17 

 2 

 

were also categorised as 'per se professional'  clients in relation to businesses 
within the scope of MiFID provided they satisfied the MiFID Large Undertakings 
test.  From 3 January 2018, it would not be possible for companies to categorise a 
local public authority that did not manage public debt as  'per se professional 
clients', and therefore every local authority would need to be distributed as retail 
clients unless companies stepped up to elected professional status.  

 
In order to move up to elected client status, local authorities, where they did not 
satisfy the MiFID Large Undertakings test, could elect to do so by completing 
specific 'step-up criteria'.   

 
It was reported that MiFID allowed retail clients that elected to be treated as 
professional clients to satisfy two criteria when being assessed - a quantitative test 
and qualitative test.  

 
In order for Gwynedd Council to be dealt with as a professional body and 'step-up', 
specific steps would need to be completed by 3 January.  A standard qualitative and 
quantitative questionnaire would need to be completed for the industry, and letters 
would need to be sent to every company and investment manager.   

 
It was reiterated that the process formalised the existing procedure and that there 
were no changes to arrangements or additional risks to be considered.  

 
In response to a question regarding the management costs and the information 
likely to be received for the cost, it was reported that concern would need to be 
highlighted if managers chose not to provide appropriate and suitable information.   
It was accepted that retail clients would pay higher costs, as professional clients 
were afforded different protection.  

 
In response to an observation regarding one of the questionnaire's questions, 
where it would be difficult to note accurate information, e.g. average number of 
years served on the committee, it was accepted that it would be unlikely to provide 
a positive response in each box.  

 
In response to an observation that managing pensions and investments was a 
specialised and technical field with the need for a continuity plan to ensure the 
highest level of continuity in the service, the suggestion to add the comment to the 
risk register was accepted.  

 

RESOLVED to accept the information and include the risk of ensuring that the 

Service's continuity plan is on the risk register.  

 

 

7.      FINAL ACCOUNTS OF THE GWYNEDD PENSION FUND FOR THE YEAR 

ENDING 31 MARCH 2017 AND RELEVANT AUDIT  

 
Submitted for information the report of the Wales Audit Office on the final accounts 
of the pension fund.  It was reported that the accounts had already been shared at 
the annual meeting and that the Audit and Governance Committee had now 
approved the accounts at its meeting on 28 September and had signed them off.    

 
Attention was drawn to the fact that the Deloitte (Wales Audit Office) report noted 
that the Auditor intended to publish an unqualified report on the financial 
statements, after resolving minor issues that had now been completed.  It was 
noted that Deloitte had expressed general satisfaction and that relevant documents 
had now been signed-off following the discussion at the Audit and Governance 
Committee.  

Page 5



PENSION BOARD 23.10.17 

 3 

 

 
In response to an observation regarding searching for a practical way of bringing 
the Euro account on the ledger, and that the likelihood that this was a general 
comment from the Auditors, it was noted that this would create unnecessary work 
and that it did not add value and it was not cost effective.    The observation that 
equipment and good practice could be shared should there be an onus to do so 
was accepted.  

 
In response to an observation regarding using i-Connect to present information 
accurately and regularly between the employers and the Altair pensions system, it 
was reported that the process worked well for those who used it.  It was reiterated 
that the Pensions Unit encouraged employers to prioritise the process, in order to 
ultimately save time, and that it was hoped that every employer would be using it by 
the next valuation.  
 
In response to the reports, the Members noted their wish to congratulate the team 
for their good work.  
 

 

RESOLVED to accept the report.  

 

8.  PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION - DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS 
 

A report was submitted by the Senior Communications Officer highlighting the 
complaints process and drawing attention to the type of complaints received, the 
steps taken to justify those complaints and the further options available to Members 
if they remained unhappy with the decisions.   It was noted that the Pensions Unit 
sought the best service for Members and that every effort was being made to 
ensure clear and effective arrangements.  In response to a Member satisfaction 
questionnaire, it was noted that 94% of Members were satisfied with the service.  

 
It was reiterated that the most common complaint was the delay in the first 
payment, but with arrangements to ensure that accurate and current data was 
submitted within the timetable, this would improve in time.  

 
In response to an observation that personal statements would change to electronic 
formats only, it was noted that the members of the fund would receive three letters 
in the coming year, reminding them of the changes.   It was also noted that a paper 
option would be available should this be requested.  

 
In response to an observation regarding the lack of general understanding about 
tax allowances, it  was noted that the Pensions Unit sent letters to individuals noting 
the implications.  

 
The Unit was thanked for its conscientious work and it was recommended that the 
annual report on the complaints was accepted and to give details on how the matter 
was resolved.  

 

RESOLVED to accept the information and to receive an annual report at the 

Pension Board regarding the number of complaints.  

 

 

9.   REPORTING BACK ON EVENTS  

 

 CIPFA Pensions Network Workshop (3.10.17)  
 

Page 6



PENSION BOARD 23.10.17 

 4 

 

A report was accepted for information from H. Eifion Jones on the content of 
the above-mentioned workshop and attention was drawn in particular to the 
response of Local Authorities to the survey on Pension Boards' 
arrangements. It was reported that the information was not detailed, and it 
was suggested that this was because not all Local Authorities had 
responded to the survey.  

 

 Autumn Seminar - Local Pension Board Members  
 

It was reported that the seminar was to be held on 6.11.17; however, it was 
agreed that there would be no representation from the Board due to the 
short-notice.   

 

 Pension Board Chairs Networking Meeting - 26.10.17  

 
It was reported that Sharon Warnes would represent the Board, and that it 
was a good opportunity to share good practice, e.g. that the Gwynedd 
Pension Board and Committee attended training jointly;  The Chair of the 
Committee and a Member of the Board observed each others' meetings, etc.  

 
It was reported that there was a need for more notice regarding events / 
conferences.  It was agreed that these events offered valuable information and 
good networking opportunities, but that there was a need to press on event 
organisers to improve the prior arrangements.   

 

 Representative from the Pension Board at the Pension Committee  
 
Agreement was reached on representatives at the next three meetings, 
namely  

 
09.11.2017 Osian Richards 
18.01.2017 Tony Deakin 
15.03.2017 H. Eifion Jones  

 

 New representative on the  Local Government Pension Scheme 

Advisory Board  

 
The Head of Finance reported for information, following the retirement of 
Mary Barnett from the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board, 
that the Welsh Local Government Association was nominating Clive Lloyd 
(Chair of the City and County of Swansea Pension Fund Committee) to 
represent Wales (the eight Welsh funds) on the Scheme's Advisory Board.  

 

1. WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP  

 
It was noted that Wales Pensions Partnership was in the process of appointing an 
Operator.  Following a complex and detailed procurement process, it was noted that 
the joint-committee would meet on 7 November 2017 and recommend the 
successful Operator to the eight funds separately, and that it would aim to formalise 
the legal procedure of establishing a contract by December 2017.   

 
In response to an observation regarding the timetable slipping as the procurement 
work had taken more time than anticipated, it was reported that there was no 
reason for the timetable to slip further and that the new Operator would be in place 
by April 2018.  It was emphasised that there was a need to ensure appropriate 
arrangements and to appoint the most suitable Operator, and that this was 

Page 7



PENSION BOARD 23.10.17 

 5 

 

fundamental to the Partnership's success.  It was reiterated that the Burges Salmon 
specialist legal company would prepare a formal report for the Pension Committees.  
 

 

 

The meeting commenced at 2pm and concluded at 3.40pm. 
 

Page 8



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 09.11.17 

 1 

 

 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 09.11.2017 

 

 

Present: Councillors: Stephen Churchman (Chair), David Cowans (Conwy Borough Council), 
Simon Glyn, John Griffith (Anglesey Council), Peredur Jenkins, Aled Wyn Jones, Peter Read, 
John Pughe Roberts a Osian Richards (Observing)   
 
Officers:- Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Nicholas Hopkins (Pensions 
Manager) and Lowri Haf Evans (Member Support Officer) 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 

 
None to note 
 

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
 None to note 
 

3. URGENT ITEMS 

 
None to note 
 

4. MINUTES 

 
The Chair signed the minutes of the meeting of this Committee, that took place on 29 
September 2017, as a true record. 

 

5. RECONCILING MEMBERS' GUARANTEED MINIMUM PENSIONS (GMP) 

 
The Pensions Manager presented a report requesting that the Committee approve an 
additional cost total for the Pensions Administration Unit to continue with its work of 
reconciling the Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMP) of individual members in line with 
HMRC (HM Revenue and Customs). It was reported that there had been a delay in 
HMRC's response to enquiries and that HMRC intended to close all reconciliation work by 
31.12.18. It was stated that extending the term of the project team to respond to the 
additional work would ensure that the work was completed within the timetable. 

 
It was highlighted that other Authorities used external companies and that an opportunity 
existed in Gwynedd to continue to benefit from the expertise of internal resources and 
avoid using expensive external consultants. 
 
The reasons for the additional work was explained to Members and that reconciling the 
minimum guaranteed pensions was very technical work and the information had to be up-
to-date, inconsistencies corrected, and risks solved. 
 
Proposed and seconded - to approve the additional expenditure, and the project team was 
thanked for its thorough work 

 

RESOLVED to approve an additional budget of £50,994 to the Pensions 

Administration Unit, in order to fund the continuation of the team until 31 December 

2018 (the HMRC deadline). 
 
 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 09.11.17 

 2 

 

6. PENSION BOARD - EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT, REMUNERATION AND 

ALLOWANCES 

 
The Head of Finance Department submitted a report in consultation with the Head of Legal 
Services requesting that the Committee consider paying an allowance to Employer 
Representatives and Scheme Member Representatives for attending Pension Board 
meetings and training sessions. It was stated that rates of allowance would be in 
accordance with the rates set for the Independent Members of Gwynedd Council's 
Standards Committee and the Lay Member of Gwynedd Council's Audit and Governance 
Committee. It was highlighted that costs would be incurred by the Pensions Fund and that 
the Pensions Committee had budgetary control powers over the Fund. 

 
In response it was noted that the recommendation was fair and that paying an allowance 
would reflect the valuable contribution and good work of the Pensions Board. 

 

RESOLVED 

 

i. An allowance will be paid to both Employer Representatives and Scheme Member 

Representatives for attending meetings relating to Pension Board business 

(including attending training) at the rates set for co-opted members of Gwynedd 

Council's Standards Committee and the lay member of Gwynedd Council's Audit 

and Governance Committee. 

 

ii. No allowance will be paid if the Board member is performing this role within their 

normal working day without a reduction in pay. For Councillors who are 

appointed to the Board, the role would be part of the various council 

appointments they take on. Therefore, it is a matter for the particular Council 

making the appointment to consider how the responsibilities of membership 

should be dealt with as part of their relevant Members Allowance Scheme. 

 

iii. All Pension Board members will also be entitled to claim travel and subsistence 

allowances at rates for co-opted members of Gwynedd Council's Standards 

Committee and the lay member of Gwynedd Council's Audit and Governance 

Committee. All costs (allowances for attending Pension Board meetings, where 

appropriate, along with travel and subsistence allowances) will be charged to the 

Pension Fund. 

 

7. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

RESOLVED to exclude the press and public from the meeting during the discussion 

on the following item due to the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 

paragraph 14, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 - information about 

the financial or business transactions of any specific person (including the authority 

that retains that information). The Operator Selection Report provides a summary of 

the procurement exercise to appoint an operator for the Wales Pensions Partnership 

conducted by the eight Welsh pension funds.  This information includes 

commercially sensitive information about applicants' comparative strengths and 

weaknesses and their submissions, and the scores awarded to the applicants. 
 

 

8. PROCUREMENT RECOMMENDATION OF THE WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP  
 

Submitted – the report of the Head of Finance Department reporting on the progress made 
with procuring the operator services for the Wales Pension Partnership for the purpose of 
managing the investment assets of eight Local Government Pension Schemes in Wales on 
a collaborative basis. It was highlighted that the successful bidder would be recommended 

Page 9



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 09.11.17 

 3 

 

to the Wales Pension Partnership Governance Joint Committee and the eight pension 
schemes would be required to confirm through their local approval process that they would 
commit to the contract with the Operator. 
 
It was reported that the successful bidder would be announced once the Governance Joint 
Committee had officially confirmed the appointment. 

 
It was proposed and seconded to approve recommendations 1 and 3 of the report 
(recommendation 2 had been deleted because further clarification was needed). 
 
It was accepted that the procurement process had been long and complex, but that it was 
vital and valuable.   
 

RESOLVED 
 

• to appoint Bidder 1 as the successful bidder for the Wales Pension 

Partnership (reference number OJEU 2017/S 050-092093), and 

 

• subject to the completion of the standstill period and the finalisation of the 

Operator Agreement, appoint Bidder 1 as the Operator under the Operator 

Agreement. 

 

 

 
The meeting commenced at 2:00pm and concluded at 3:00pm. 

Page 10



 
 

Meeting: Pension Board 

Date: 05/12/2017 

Title: The Pension Regulator: Public Service Governance Survey 
2017  

Purpose: Receive feedback from the Board in order to complete the 
survey  

Author: Meirion Jones, Senior Communication Officer 

 
 

 1. INTRODUCTION  

The Pensions Regulator has issued a survey for each local scheme manager to complete for the pension fund it 

administers. Gwynedd Council is the local scheme manager for the Gwynedd Pension Fund and is therefore 

responsible for completing the survey.  

The survey should be completed by the scheme manager working with the Pension Board chair. The Chairman 

of the Gwynedd Pension Board believes that the best way is for the Board to look at the survey and consider 

its response. The closing date for responses is 1
st

 December 2017. However the Regulator is happy to extend 

the deadline for Gwynedd in order for us to receive an input from the Board at this meeting. 

2. THE SURVEY  

A copy of the survey is attached as Appendix A. The responses to the questions will be considered at this 

meeting and a final version will be agreed with the Chairman before it is sent to The Pensions Regulator. 

However to aid the completion of the survey, factual questions and the opinion of the Pensions Manager have 

been marked in BOLD in Appendix A. These replies are open for discussion at the meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



 

Appendix A 

The Pensions Regulator 

Public Service Governance Survey 2017 

 
THIS DOCUMENT IS INTENDED TO BE USED AS A GUIDE TO HELP YOU GATHER THE INFORMATION 
REQUIRED FOR THE SURVEY. PLEASE NOTE, HOWEVER, THAT WE NEED YOU TO COMPLETE THE 
QUESTIONNAIRE THROUGH THE ONLINE SURVEY LINK CONTAINED IN YOUR INVITATION EMAIL. 

Thank you for taking the time to complete this survey. 

The questions in the survey should be answered in relation to the scheme referenced in your 
invitation email. Where the scheme is locally administered, we mean the sub-scheme or fund 
administered by the local scheme manager.  

Your responses will be kept anonymous unless you consent otherwise at the end of the survey. 
Linking your scheme name to your answers will help inform The Pension Regulator’s engagement 
with you in the future. 

This survey should be completed by the scheme manager or by another party on behalf of the 
scheme manager. You should work with the pension board chair to complete it, and other parties 
(e.g. the administrator) where appropriate. 

 
SECTION A – BASIC INFORMATION 

 
QA1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Which of the following best describes your role within the pension scheme? 
Please select one answer only 

1. Scheme manager or representative of the scheme manager* 
2. Pension board chair 
3. Pension board member 
4. Administrator 
5. Other (please specify): ........................................................................................ 

 
*In this survey ‘scheme manager’ refers to the definition within the Public Service Pensions Act, e.g. 
the Local Authority, Fire and Rescue Authority, Police Pensions Authority, Secretary of State/Minister 
or Ministerial department.  
 
 

SECTION B – GOVERNANCE 
 
The first set of questions is about how your pension board works in practice. 
 
QB1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Does your scheme have a documented policy to manage the pension board members’ conflicts of 
interest? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QB2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 

Page 12



Does your scheme maintain a register of pension board members’ interests? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QB3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
How often does your pension board meet? 

Please select one answer only 

1. At least monthly 
2. At least quarterly 
3. At least every six months 
4. At least annually 
5. Less frequently than annually 
6. Don’t know 

 
QB4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
How often does the scheme manager, or a representative of the scheme manager, attend pension 
board meetings? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Every time the pension board meets 
2. As required 
3. Rarely 
4. Never 
5. Don’t know 

 
QB5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Thinking about the interaction between the pension board and the scheme manager (or 
representative of the scheme manager), which of the following apply to your scheme?  

Please select all that apply and use the ‘Other’ option to specify any other ways in which the pension 
board and scheme manager interact 

1. The scheme manager commissions advice from the pension board 
2. The pension board submits written reports to the scheme manager 
3. The pension board chair has face-to-face meetings with the scheme manager  
4. Other (please specify) Scheme Manager submits reports to the board within the quarterly 

meetings 
5. Don’t know 

 
 
  

Page 13



 
QB6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Has the pension board done any of the following? 

Please select one answer per row 

 
Yes – in last 
12 months 

Yes – but 
not in last 
12 months 

No – not 
needed to 

do this 
No – not 
done this 

Don’t 
know 

a) Identified to the scheme manager 
where there are poor standards 
and/or non-compliance with legal 
requirements 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) Set out recommendations to the 
scheme manager on addressing 
poor standards and/or non-
compliance with legal requirements 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

c) Advised the scheme manager on 
scheme regulations, the governance 
and administration requirements 
set out in legislation, and the 
standards expected by TPR 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

d) Taken or secured actions to address 
poor standards and/or non-
compliance with legal requirements 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

 
QB7. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Do the scheme manager and pension board have sufficient time and resources to run the scheme 
properly? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QB8. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Do the scheme manager and pension board have access to all the knowledge, understanding and 
skills necessary to properly run the scheme? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QB9. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does the scheme manager or pension board carry out a regular evaluation of the performance and 
effectiveness of the board as a whole? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
  

Page 14



SECTION C – MANAGING RISKS 
 
The next set of questions is about managing risks. 
 
QC1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does your scheme have documented procedures for assessing and managing risk? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QC2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does your scheme have a risk register? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QC3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
To what do the top three governance and administration risks on your register relate? If you do 
not have a risk register please identify the top three risks facing your scheme.  

Please select up to three options below 

1. Funding or investment 
2. Record keeping 
3. Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) reconciliation 
4. Securing compliance with legislation 
5. Employer compliance 
6. Lack of resources/time 
7. Recruitment and retention of staff or knowledge 
8. Lack of knowledge, effectiveness or leadership among key personnel 
9. Poor communications between key personnel (board, scheme manager, administrator, etc.) 
10. Failure of internal controls 
11. Systems failures (IT, payroll, administration systems, etc) 
12. Administrator issues (expense, performance, etc) 
13. Other (please specify): .................................................................................................. 
14. Don’t know 

 
QC4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
How often do you review the scheme’s exposure to new and existing risks? 

Please select one answer only 

1. At least monthly 
2. At least quarterly 
3. At least every six months 
4. At least annually 
5. Less frequently than annually 
6. Don’t know 

 
  

Page 15



 
QC5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Which of the following best describes your administration services? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Delivered in house 
2. Outsourced to another public body (e.g. a county council) 
3. Outsourced to a commercial third party 
4. Other 
5. Don’t know 

 
QC6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Which of the following do you use to monitor and manage the performance of your administrators 
(whether in-house or outsourced)? 

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Performance metrics are set out in contracts or service level agreements  
2. Administrators provide independent assurance reports 
3. Independent auditors review the performance of administrators 
4. Administrators deliver regular reports to the scheme manager and/or pension board on 

the service provided 
5. Administrators attend regular meetings with the scheme manager and/or pension board 
6. Penalties are applied where contractual terms or service standards are not met 
7. Other 
8. Don’t know 

 
 

SECTION D – ADMINISTRATION AND RECORD-KEEPING PROCESSES 
 
The next set of questions is about administration and record-keeping. 
 
QD1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
How often does the pension board include administration as a dedicated item on the agenda at 
board meetings? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Every time the pension board meets 
2. As required 
3. Rarely 
4. Never 
5. Don’t know 

 
QD2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Do you have processes in place to monitor scheme records for all membership types on an 
ongoing basis to ensure they are accurate and complete?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No  
3. Don’t know 

 
  

Page 16



 
QD3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does the scheme have an agreed process in place with employer(s) to receive, check and review 
data? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QD4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
What proportion of your scheme’s employers… 

Please write in a percentage. If you do not know exactly, please give an approximate percentage. 

a) Provide you with timely data?   ........61.2 (End of April) 79.59% (End of May)........... % 

b) Provide accurate and complete data? ........76.7........... % 
 
QD5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does the scheme have a process in place for monitoring the payment of contributions? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QD6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does the scheme have a process in place for resolving contribution payment issues and assessing 
whether to report payment failures to TPR? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QD7. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Which of these controls does your scheme have in place to ensure the security of members’ data? 

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Your scheme and the administrators have training in the principles of the Data Protection 
Act 

2. You have a process to ensure data breaches are reported to the administrator and by the 
administrator to the scheme manager 

3. The credentials of staff able to access scheme and member records are regularly reviewed 
4. Your scheme and the administrators are familiar with how to protect against cyber threat, 

e.g. familiarity with the government’s Cyber Essentials guidance. 
5. None of these 
6. Don’t know 

 
  

Page 17



 
QD8. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
How are your records held? 

Please select one answer only 

1. All electronically 
2. Mainly electronically but some held on paper 
3. Mainly held on paper 
4. All on paper 
5. Don’t know 

 
 

SECTION E –  DATA REVIEW  
 
QE1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Before completing this survey, how familiar were you with the terms ‘common data’ and ’scheme 
specific (conditional) data’? 

 Common data are basic data items which are used to identify scheme members. 

 Scheme-specific (conditional) data are other data items needed to run the scheme e.g. to 
accurately calculate member benefits. This includes data required by scheme regulations or 
needed to comply with other pieces of legislation. 

Please select one answer per row 

 Very 
familiar 

Quite 
familiar 

Not very 
familiar 

Not at all 
familiar 

Don’t 
know 

a) Common data ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) Scheme specific (conditional) data ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

 
QE2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does your administrator currently measure your common data score and scheme specific 
(conditional) data score? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes, they measure both the common and conditional data scores 
2. They only measure the common data score 
3. They only measure the conditional data score 
4. No, they do not measure either score 
5. Don’t know 

 
QE3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
When did your scheme last carry out a data review exercise? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Within the last 12 months 
2. More than 12 months ago 
3. Never 
4. Don’t know 

 
  

Page 18



 
QE4. ANSWER IF SCHEME HAS CARRIED OUT A DATA REVIEW EXERCISE (QE3=1 OR 2) 
Did the data review look at any of the following? 

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Members’ basic details (e.g. name, DOB & NI number)  
2. Address data 
3. Existence checks 
4. Salary or earnings data 
5. Member benefit data 
6. Key dates held on member records 
7. Contracted out data 
8. Other (please specify): .................................................................................................. 
9. None of these 
10. Don’t know 

 
QE5. ANSWER IF SCHEME HAS CARRIED OUT A DATA REVIEW EXERCISE (QE3=1 OR 2) 
Did your scheme’s most recent data review exercise identify any issues or problems? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes  
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QE6. ANSWER IF MOST RECENT DATA REVIEW IDENTIFIED ANY ISSUES OR PROBLEMS (QE5=1) 
Has any action been taken to address the issues identified?  

Please choose one answer that most closely describes the action your scheme has taken to date 

1. An improvement plan is in development 
2. An improvement plan is in place but rectification work is not yet complete 
3. An improvement plan has been put in place and rectification work has been completed 
4. Rectification work has been undertaken without an improvement plan 
5. No plan has been developed and no work has taken place  
6. Other (please specify): .................................................................................. 
7. Don’t know 

 
 

SECTION F – COMMUNICATIONS 
 
The next set of questions is about communicating to members and resolving issues or complaints 
the scheme has received. 
 
QF1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
In 2017, what proportion of active members received their annual benefit statements by the 
statutory deadline? 

Please write in a percentage. If you do not know exactly, please give an approximate percentage. 

a) ........72.2........... % 

b) Don’t know 
 
  

Page 19



 
QF2. ANSWER IF DEADLINE WAS MISSED FOR ANY MEMBERS (QF1=0-99%) 
Was the missed deadline for issuing active member statements reported to TPR? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes - and Breach of Law report made 
2. Yes - but decided not to make a Breach of Law report 
3. No - not reported 
4. Don’t know 

 
QF3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
How confident are you that member communications are accurate, clear, relevant and provided in 
plain English? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Very confident 
2. Fairly confident 
3. Not very confident 
4. Not at all confident 
5. Don’t know 

 
 

SECTION G – RESOLVING ISSUES 
 
QG1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
In the last 12 months, how many complaints have you received from members or beneficiaries in 
relation to their benefits and/or the running of the scheme? 

Please write in below. Number at B should be equal or lower than number at A. 

a) Total number of complaints received ............10....... 

b) Number of complaints that have entered the 
Internal Dispute Resolution (IDR) process ..........0......... 

 
QG2. ANSWER IF ANY COMPLAINTS RECEIVED IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (QG1a>0) 
To what did the top three types of complaint relate?  

Please select up to three options below 

1. Eligibility for ill health benefit 
2. Slow or ineffective communication 
3. Inaccuracies or disputes around pension value or definitions 
4. Delays to benefit payments 
5. Disputes or queries about the amount of benefit paid 
6. Delay or refusal of pension transfer 
7. Inaccurate data held and/or statement issued 
8. Pension overpayment and recovery 
9. Other (please specify): .................................................................................................. 
10. Don’t know 

 

  

Page 20



SECTION H – REPORTING BREACHES 
 
QH1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does the scheme have procedures in place to allow the scheme manager, pension board members 
and others to identify breaches of the law?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QH2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
In the last 12 months, have you identified any breaches of the law?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QH3. ANSWER IF ANY BREACHES HAVE BEEN IDENTIFIED IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (QH2=1)  
What were the root causes of the breaches identified?  

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Systems or process failure 
2. Failure to maintain records or rectify errors 
3. Management of transactions (e.g. errors or delays in payments of benefits) 
4. Failure of employers to provide timely, accurate or complete data 
5. Other employer-related issues (please specify): ............................................................. 
6. Conflicts of interest 
7. Lack of knowledge and understanding 
8. Something else (please specify): ..................................................................................... 
9. Don’t know 

 
QH4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Are there procedures in place to assess breaches of the law, and report these to TPR if required?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
QH5. ANSWER IF ANY BREACHES HAVE BEEN IDENTIFIED IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (QH2=1) 
In the last 12 months, have you reported any breaches to TPR as you thought they were materially 
significant?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 

  

Page 21



SECTION I – GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 
The next set of questions is about your progress in addressing governance and administration 
issues. 
 
QI1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
To what do the main three barriers to improving the governance and administration of your 
scheme relate?  

Please select up to three options below 

1. Lack of resources or time 
2. Complexity of the scheme 
3. The volume of changes that are required to comply with legislation 
4. Recruitment, training and retention of staff and knowledge 
5. Lack of knowledge, effectiveness or leadership among key personnel 
6. Poor communications between key personnel (board, scheme manager, administrator, etc) 
7. Employer compliance 
8. Issues with systems (IT, payroll, administration systems, etc) 
9. Other (please specify): .................................................................................................. 
10. There are no barriers 
11. Don’t know 

 
QI2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
To what would you attribute any improvements made to the scheme’s governance and 
administration in the last 12 months?  

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Improved understanding of underlying legislation and standards expected by TPR 
2. Improved engagement by TPR 
3. Improved understanding of the risks facing the scheme 
4. Resources increased or redeployed to address risks 
5. Administrator action (please specify): ..................................................................... 
6. Scheme manager action (please specify): ................................................................ 
7. Pension board action (please specify): ..................................................................... 
8. Other (please specify): ............................................................................................. 
9. No improvements to governance/administration in last 12 months 
10. Don’t know 

 

  

Page 22



SECTION J – TPR PRODUCTS AND PERCEPTIONS 
 
The final set of questions is about your views of TPR and its materials. 
 
QJ1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Have you used or are you aware of the following materials provided by TPR? 

Please select one answer per row 

 
Used in last 
12 months 

Used but 
not in last 
12 months 

Aware of 
this but not 

used it 
Not aware 

of this 
Don’t 
know 

a) Public service section of the 
TPR website 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) Public service code of practice ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

c) Guide to issuing annual benefit 
statements 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

d) Guides to public service 
pension boards 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

e) Public service toolkit ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

f) Reporting breaches guidance ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

g) Self-assessment tool ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

h) Data improvement quick guide ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

i) Example risk register ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

j) Quick guide to scheme return ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

k) Internal controls checklist ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

l) Record keeping quick guide ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

m) News by email service ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

 
  

Page 23



 
QJ2. ANSWER FOR EACH TPR PRODUCT USED (CODES 1 OR 2 AT QJ1A-M) 
How useful did you find each of the following TPR materials? 

Please select one answer per material used 

 
Very useful 

Fairly 
useful 

Not very 
useful 

Not at all 
useful 

Don’t 
know 

a) Public service section of the 
TPR website 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) Public service code of practice ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

c) Guide to issuing annual benefit 
statements 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

d) Guides to public service 
pension boards 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

e) Public service toolkit ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

f) Reporting breaches guidance ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

g) Self-assessment tool ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

h) Data improvement quick guide ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

i) Example risk register ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

j) Quick guide to scheme return ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

k) Internal controls checklist ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

l) Record keeping quick guide ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

m) News by email service ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

 
QJ3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
When did you most recently visit TPR’s website? 

Please select one answer only 

1. In the last month 
2. 2-3 months ago 
3. 4-6 months ago 
4. 7-12 months ago 
5. More than a year ago 
6. Don’t know / can’t remember 
7. Have never visited the TPR website 

 
QJ4. ANSWER IF HAVE USED TPR’S WEBSITE (QJ3=1-5)  
To what extent would you say you get what you want from the TPR website when you visit it? 
Would you say you typically…? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Get everything you want  
2. Get most of what you want  
3. Get some of what you want  
4. Do not get what you want 
5. Don’t know  

 
  

Page 24



 
QJ5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Thinking about your overall perception of TPR, to what extent do you agree or disagree with the 
following words as ways to describe TPR? 

Please select one answer per row 

 
Strongly 

agree Agree 

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree Disagree 

Strongly 
disagree 

Don’t 
know 

a) Tough ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) Efficient ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

c) Visible ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

d) Fair ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

e) Respected ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

f) Evidence-based ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

g) Decisive ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

h) Clear ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

i) Approachable ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

 
QJ6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Thinking now about how TPR operates, how effective do you think it is at improving standards in 
scheme governance and administration in public service pension schemes? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Very effective 
2. Fairly effective 
3. Neither effective nor ineffective 
4. Not very effective 
5. Not at all effective 
6. Don’t know 

 
QJ7. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
In September TPR started an email campaign aimed at driving up the standards of governance in 
pension schemes. The campaign is also referred to as 21st century trusteeship. It outlines how 
people involved in running schemes can take action to meet the expected standards. 

Do you remember receiving any emails about this from TPR? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. I think so 
3. No 
4. Don’t know 

 

Page 25



QJ8. ANSWER IF RECEIVED OR THINK RECEIVED A 21st CENTURY TRUSTEE EMAIL (QJ7=1 OR 2) 
What action, if any, did you take as a result of receiving the email(s)? 

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Visited the TPR website 
2. Forwarded the email on to someone else 
3. Discussed it with other members of the pension board 
4. Checked aspects of the scheme’s governance 
5. Took steps to improve the scheme’s governance 
6. Spoke with the advisory board 
7. Spoke with the administrators 
8. Other (please specify): ............................................................................................. 
9. None of these things 
10. Don’t know / can’t remember 

 
QJ9. ANSWER IF RECEIVED OR THINK RECEIVED A 21st CENTURY TRUSTEE EMAIL (QJ7=1 OR 2) 
To what extent would you agree or disagree that the emails were...? 

Please select one answer per row 

 
Strongly 

agree Agree 

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree Disagree 

Strongly 
disagree Don’t know 

a) Useful ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) Clear ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

c) Relevant ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

 
 

SECTION K – ATTRIBUTION 
 
Thank you for completing this survey. Your responses will help TPR understand how schemes are 
progressing and any issues they may face, which will inform further policy and product 
developments. Before you submit your answers, there are just four more questions about your 
survey responses. 
 
QK1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
What other parties did you consult with to complete this survey? 

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Scheme manager or representative of the scheme manager 
2. Pension board chair 
3. Pension board member 
4. Administrator 
5. Other 
6. Did not consult with any other parties 

 
  

Page 26



 
QK2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
To inform TPR’s engagement going forward, they would like to build an individual profile of your 
scheme by linking your scheme name to your survey answers. This will only be used for internal 
purposes by TPR and your identity will not be revealed in any published report. 

Are you happy for your responses to be linked to your scheme name and supplied to TPR for this 
purpose? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes, I am happy for my responses to be linked to my scheme name and supplied to TPR 
2. No, I would like my responses to remain anonymous 

 
 
QK3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
And would you also be happy for the responses you have given to be linked to your scheme name 
and shared with the relevant scheme advisory board? This is to help inform the advisory boards of 
areas for improvement and to further their engagement with pension boards. 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes, I am happy for my responses to be linked to my scheme name and shared with the 
relevant advisory board 

2. No, I would like my responses to remain anonymous 
 
QK4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Please record your name below. This is just for quality control purposes and will not be passed on 
to TPR. 

Please write in 

............................................................................................................... 
 

 
 

Page 27


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 MINUTES OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE
	7 THE PENSION REGULATOR: PUBLIC SERVICE GOVERNANCE SURVEY 2017

